
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 
Finance, Commercial 

Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 4 July 2018 
7.00 pm 

Committee 1 Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration: Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor PJ Murphy (Chair) 
Councillor Patricia Quigley 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

Tony Boys 
Erik Hohenstein 
Chris Littmoden 
Judith Worthy  
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 0208 753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

26 June 2018 
 

 

mailto:kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and 
Contracts Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
4 July 2018 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF A VICE CHAIR FOR 2018/19 MUNICIPAL YEAR   

 The Committee is asked to appoint a Vice Chair for the 2018/19 
municipal year. 
 

 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTEES   

 The Committee is asked to agree the re-appointment of the following co-
opted members for 2018-19: 

 Tony Boys 

 Erik Hohenstein 

 Chris Littmoden 

 Judith Worthy 
 

 

3.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

5.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  5 - 14 

 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign the 
minutes of the meeting held on 16th January 2018. 
 

 



6.   2017/18 CORPORATE REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT  15 - 43 

 Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act requires the Chief 
Financial Officer (as the responsible officer) to ensure proper 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs.  This report is the 
concluding part of the Council’s 2017/18 budgetary control cycle. 
Budgetary control, which includes the regular monitoring of and 
reporting on budgets, is an essential requirement placed on Cabinet 
Members, the Chief Executive, and Directors in discharging the 
statutory responsibility. 
 

 

7.   RESIDENTS' SERVICES REPORT - REVENUE REPORT 2018/19  44 - 59 

 At this early stage, parking is forecasting that it will end the year 
£413,000 favourable against budget.  Residents’ services department is 
forecasting that it will end the year £753,000 adverse against budget.  
Taken together, the forecast is for an adverse variance of £340,000 if 
mitigating actions were not taken.  The Committee is asked to note this 
report and comment on measures that should be considered. 
 

 

8.   SECTION 106 UPDATE REPORT  60 - 66 

 This report covers the role of section 106 agreements and use of 
section 106 funds. 
 

 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 2018 - 19   

 The Committee is asked to consider how it would like to shape its work 
programme for the remainder of the municipal year. 
 

 

10.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following dates are proposed:  

 Monday 5th September 2018 

 Monday 5th December 2018  

 Tuesday 12th February 2019  

 Wednesday 27th March 2019 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Finance and Delivery Policy & 
Accountability Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 16 January 2018 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors PJ Murphy (Chair), Guy Vincent, Michael Adam, 
Lucy Ivimy and Vivienne Lukey 
 
Co-opted members: Tony Boys, Erik Hohenstein, Chris Littmoden and Judith 
Worthy 
 
Other Councillors:  
Councillor Max Schmid (Cabinet Member for Finance). 
 
Officers:  
Kim Dero (Chief Executive), John Finlayson (Head of Regeneration), Mark Grimley 
(Director of HR), Emily Hill (Head of Corporate Finance), Michael Hainge 
(Commercial Director), Andrew Lord (Head of Strategic Planning), Hitesh Jolapara 
(Strategic Finance Director), Nick Austin (Director of Environmental 
Health),Kathleen Corbett (HCH Director of Finance and Resources)  Glendine 
Shepherd (Head of Housing Solutions), Steve Miley (Director of Children’s 
Services), Lisa Redfern (Director of Adult Social Care),Matthew Sales (Programme 
Manager), Ellen Whitchurch (Head of Development), and Charles Francis 
(Committee Services). 
 

 
10. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2017 were approved and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence 
 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

13. DRAFT TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2018/19  
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Phil Triggs, Director of Treasury and Pensions presented a draft report that 
set out the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19. 
 
Details were provided on the changes from the previous year and the 
proposal for UK Local Authorities to be provided with increased individual 
loan limits of £20m to £30m. Overviews were also provided on a number of 
key areas including borrowing, capital spend plans and managing cash 
balances and investments. 
 
Members discussed current investment types and enquired whether these 
might be moved or diversified. In response, officers confirmed that UK Local 
Authorities were very safe and details were provided about changing 
investments limits across Building Societies, Enhanced Money Funds, 
Collateralised deposits and Green Energy Bonds. It was noted that the 
investment strategy sought to minimise risk and avoid harm to the portfolio. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked for further details to be provided about Green 
Energy Bonds as these were a new sector. In response, Councillor Max 
Schmid confirmed the proposed changes included being able to hold these 
for an increased duration of 5 to 10 years. It was noted that when these were 
examined at Pensions Committee, preliminary work suggested these would 
typically be held for 7 years. 
 
Chris Littmoden asked which body advised the Authority about its investment 
strategy and in terms of collateralised deposits, what the rate of risk and 
return was? In response, Phil Triggs confirmed the Council used Link 
(recently changed from Capita) and details were provided on the basis point 
returns. 
 
Members asked for further details on commercial property. In response, Phil 
Triggs explained that the Asset category was new and at this stage no due 
diligence had been conducted. As soon as this exercise had been done, he 
confirmed that Councillor Max Schmid and the Strategic Finance Director 
would have further discussions before any decision to invest was taken. Phil 
Triggs explained that presently, many other Local Authorities were investing 
in this category but confirmed that from LBHFs perspective, the area had not 
been fully investigated. 
 
The Chair asked officers to conduct further research into the area of 
commercial property and to bring back a report to the Committee and 
Pensions Committee before this option was considered at Cabinet? 
 
Action: Phil Triggs 
 
Councillor Lucy Ivimy asked about the HRA position, in view of it coming 
close to its borrowing limit and what the headroom was? Councillor Schmid 
explained this would be addressed in a later agenda item. 
 
In relation to the current capital programme, the Chair asked why the Town 
Hall refurbishment development had not been included and what the risks 
were? In response, Councillor Max Schmid confirmed that an aspect of the 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

new (Town Hall) scheme was how much revenue it might generate and 
confirmed the Council had been underspending for the last 6 to 7 years on a 
major refurbushment. As a result, it was anticipated that £7 to £8 million 
would be progressed through Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and this 
would be discussed later in the meeting under the Capital Programme. 
 
Chris Littmoden asked about debt maturity and whether the upper limits had 
changed. In response, Officers explained that this was unclear at the present 
time and would need to be double checked. The Committee discussed high 
the high-level cash surplus and whether there had been a spike in the level of 
borrowing. Councillor Michael Adam highlighted that the Authority could not 
borrow funds to top up its expenditure as it had an obligation to pass a 
balanced budget. In response, officers confirmed that lots of the high-level 
borrowing was a matter of asset management and given the current base rate 
there were no immediate signs of an interest rate change. 
 
The Chair asked about borrowing and at what the level of the interest rate 
needed to be for borrowing to become uneconomic. Phil Triggs explained that 
in late 2007, the base rate had been 5.75% and 50-year PWLB borrowing 
would have cost 4.60% per annum. Since the base rate fell to 0.50% in 2009, 
the cost of PWLB borrowing has always been above the base rate, making it 
more efficient to fund capital spending from internal borrowing. At some point 
in the future, in a rising interest rate environment, it will become economic 
again to borrow long term and to pay back the council’s internal borrowing. 
The council’s treasury consultant will provide advice when that position 
becomes imminent. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To note the following recommendations (para 2.2 to 2.3) which will put before 
Budget Council in February 2018: 

That approval is given to the future borrowing and investment strategies as 
outlined in this report and that the Strategic Finance Director, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Finance, be authorised to manage the Council’s 
cash flow, borrowing and investments in 2018/19 in line with this report. 

In relation to the Council’s overall borrowing for the financial year, to note the 
comments and the Prudential Indicators as set out in this report and the 
revised Annual Investment Strategy set out in Appendix E. 

 

 
14. S106 UPDATE REPORT  

 
The Chair introduced the report which provided details of how s106 monies 
were monitored, decisions taken and what the current financial position was.  

He explained that he had made a specific request in November 2017 for 
information to be provided on the amount of s106 monies which had been 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

spent and what the current balance was; neither of which had been included 
in the report. As a result, the Chair reiterated his original request and asked 
for a further report to be prepared for consideration at the next meeting. 

Tony Boys remarked the report provided a useful introduction but lacked 
detail and also the figures for expenditure over the past 7 years which had 
been requested. Officers apologised for the lack of information and explained 
that they had needed to address a number of conflicting priorities which had 
meant the information could not be readily supplied in the timescale 
requested. In response, the Chair explained that it would have been 
preferable if officers had explained the information could not be provided from 
the outset. 

Tony Boys asked for details to be provided on how much of the overall s106 
monies were allocated to projects, what the residual balance was and where 
this was held. In response, Ellen Whitchurch explained that current details of 
s106 projects were published on the Council’s website. Some of the s106 
Agreements dated to the previous 7 years, however, due to the complex 
mechanics of how s106 Agreements operated, there was likely to be degree 
of time lag which affected how figures could be presented. Ellen Whitchurch 
explained that officers held a 9-page schedule which provided details on how 
and what s106 monies could be spent on. Examples of which included cctv, 
affordable housing, public realm projects and highways / infrastructure needs. 
Officers explained that copies of this 9-page document could be provided to 
Committee. 

Action: Ellen Whitchurch to provide details on the types of s106 
projects. 

The Chair reiterated the request made by Tony Boys and asked for a one-
page list to be provided on the types of projects. Councillor Vivienne Lukey 
welcomed that information would be provided and also requested that an 
additional list was provided showing how s106 monies had been spent across 
all wards in the Borough. In response, Ellen Whitchurch explained that this 
would be difficult to provide, as some s106 contributions were boroughwide, 
whilst others were ward specific. It was noted that until a formal cabinet 
decision was taken, it was not easy for officers to adjudge where every 
contribution could be spent as expenditure could not be predetermined. 

Councillor Guy Vincent raised the Thames Tideway development as an 
example and asked if a residents group felt s106 monies should be spent on 
a specific project, whether it was legitimate for these suggestions to be aired. 
Ellen Whitchurch confirmed that the test which needed to be applied for the 
allocation of s106 monies, was that the expenditure had to be related to the 
development and be consummate to the scheme. 

Councillor Michael Adam asked whether the 9-page schedule (which 
identified how and what s106 monies could be spent on) covered £50 or £200 
million worth of potential expenditure. In response, Ellen Whitchurch 
confirmed this covered £50 million. The Committee asked for a breakdown to 
be provided on how the £200 million would be spent. 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Action: Ellen Whitchurch to provide a breakdown of the major projects 
within the £200 million s106 budget. 

Councillor Michael Adam asked what happened to s106 monies if these were 
not allocated within a specific timescale and whether these were returned to 
the developer. In response, officers confirmed that most s106 agreements did 
not included a return of funds clause. Chris Littmoden enquired whether there 
had ever been an occasion where a developer had defaulted on an s106 
Agreement. In response, John Finlayson explained that if a developver did 
not pay the anticipated contributions, they would be in breach of terms of the 
Planning permission and he was not aware of any occasion where the s106 
contributions had not been paid. 

The Chair asked officers if there were currently any s106 Agreements which 
were in dispute? In response, John Finlayson confirmed that the amounts 
paid were dependent on development commencement and in the case of 
large scale developments, these could run to several phases. Councillor 
Michael Adam referred to the Earls Court development and asked how much 
money the Council had received as there were a number of different views 
about how much the development was worth to the Authority. In response, 
officers explained that some of the contributions were allocated to TfL for 
transport infrastructure projects and so in terms of monies directly 
apportioned to the Council, it was anticipated that between £8 to £9 million 
would be received. 

Councillor Michael Adam asked whether the £200 million which had already 
been discussed was Council monies, or money which had been allocated to 
other parties. Officers confirmed that this would need to be checked. Chris 
Littmoden asked about borrowing and spending and whether there were any 
bad debts? In response, John Finlayson confirmed that this was dependent 
on whether any triggers had been met. 

Tony Boys remarked that the allocation of s106 appeared to be far less 
transparent than CIL allocations and asked if there were distinct values or 
thresholds for each funding type. In response, John Finlayson confirmed that 
up to 2010, the allocation of s106 had been based on precedent arising from 
case law, whereas CIL was more of a development tax. Officers confirmed 
that CIL payments were far more restrictive and had to be spent of 
infrastructure projects 

Resolved 

1. That the report be noted and that a further more detailed report be 
provided to the next meeting. 

2. That officers provide details on the types of s106 projects on a one-
page summary document. 

3. That officers provide a breakdown of the major projects within the £200 
million s106 budget. 

 
15. 2018 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)  

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Finance Director, introduced the report that set out 
the budget proposals for corporate services. Slides were presented that gave 
context for the scale of the challenge facing local government in recent years. 
It was noted that H&F’s general government grant had been reduced each 
year since 2010/11 and the total reduction since April 2010 to March 2018 
was £70 million. He explained that in addition, there would be a further 
reduction in 2018/19 of £8.6 million and a further cut of £5.2 million was 
forecast by 2021/22. He noted that the 2018/19 budget assumed a continued 
freeze in council tax and no increase in fees and charges in Children’s 
Services, Adult Social Care, and Housing Services. 
  
Members noted paragraph 3.3 of the report and asked for clarification as to 
whether it was correct that the Government was recommending Councils 
raise council tax by 6 percent. In response, Hitesh Jolapara explained Central 
Government grant assumptions were based on H&F raising council tax and 
the precept by a combined 6% per year to 2019/20, though ultimately it was 
the choice of individual local authorities. Councillor Max Schmid confirmed the 
expectation was that Local Authorities should be increasing council tax 
whereas the budget proposed to freeze council tax for the year. 

  

Members asked for further details to be provided on business rates. Hitesh 
Jolapara explained that business rates were modelled to increase with 
inflation with allowance made for an extra £2.2m from the opening of the 
Westfield extension in March 2018. The Committee noted that London Local 
Government was working to take forward a 100% business rates retention 
pilot for London from April 2018. The concept of such an arrangement was 
that London would retain 100% of any growth in business rates, though 
business rates valuations and levels would still be set by Government. Early 
indicative modelling had suggested this might benefit Hammersmith and 
Fulham by £2.6m. In addition, £110m would be generated for a London wide 
investment pot. 
  
Councillor Guy Vincent asked what would happen to the £2.2 million from 
Westfield. In response officers explained that this had been allowed for within 
the initial modelling for the business rates pilot. 
  
Discussing the governments perspective on incentivized growth, Chris 
Littmoden asked about pay-out and whether this was a set ratio or a 
judgement. Andrew Lord, Head of Strategic Planning, commented that this 
was calculated on a fixed ratio through London Councils by a complex 
algorithm. 
  
Members noted that the council faced a continued financial challenge due to 
the overall Government funding cuts, unfunded burdens, inflation, and growth 
pressures. Members asked about the budget gap before 
savings. Officers explained that the gross budget gap before savings in 18/19 
was £14.6m and increased cumulatively to £55.1m in 21/22.  
  
Members discussed the various risks posed to the Council as set out in 
Appendix 2 of the report. Commenting on the prevailing levels of uncertainty, 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Steve Miley, Director of Children’s Services drew the Committee’s attention to 
Care for Care Leavers and Asylum Seekers provision, as examples of where 
the Government grant was far lower than the actual cost of funding these 
areas. Emily Hill also highlighted the pressures which had been created by 
the Homelessness Reduction Act and the Committee noted the requirement 
to house potential further 70 households per year in temporary 
accommodation. 
  
Turning to savings, Tony Boys asked what levels of savings were 
sustainable? In response, the Strategic Finance Director explained that £15 to 
£20 million per year had previously been identified and officers were already 
actively looking at options for next year’s budget. Councillor Michael Adam 
asked if the Council had overspent by £5 million, to which officers explained 
that there had been contingency within the previous budget for this, so an 
overspend would be offset against that and that growth in the budget reflected 
the main spending pressures. 
  
The Chair highlighted there was a shortfall of a couple of a million pounds in 
Adult Social Care and pressures arising specifically in Housing, Children’s 
and Adult’s Care. In response, Prakash Daryanani (Head of Finance, Adult 
Social Care) provided details of the action plan to mitigate this. Councillor 
Max Schmid reiterated that corporate contingencies had been made and 
confirmed that every department across the Council was looking and had 
been told to find savings. 
  
Councillor Michael Adam asked for further details to be provided on 
commercial considerations. In response, Michael Hainge, Commercial 
Director, provided an overview of the area, citing what business intelligence 
was doing, the actions being taken on Council tax single person discount as 
well as highlighting what projects were in the pipeline. The Committee noted 
that, at present, there was roughly £2 million in the pipeline from future 
projects. The Committee also discussed ethical debt collection and noted the 
innovation in this area. 
  
Councillor Michael Adam asked for an update to be provided on digital 
advertising. Michael Hainge explained there had been a degree of slippage in 
this area and the funds generated were based on a profit sharing basis. 
  
The Chair asked about the situation in the Children’s and Housing 
Department and which department was likely to overspend? In response, 
Steve Miley, Director of Children’s Services explained that Children’s 
Services placement expenditure was currently under review. The Committee 
noted that some child placements were very costly and there was a projection 
the overspend in this area could rise from £500k to £2 million. The Chair 
asked officers what their gut feeling was in the area and the Director 
confirmed that it was anticipated there would be an overspend of about £2 
million. 
  
RESOLVED 
That the Committee considered the budget proposals to Cabinet. 
 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

16. FOUR YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19  
 
 
Emily Hill, Head of Corporate Finance, presented the Council’s proposed 
four-year Capital Programme for the period 2018-22. The programme was 
scheduled to be approved by Council in February.  
 
Officers informed members that the forecast set out in table 1 of the report for 
specific and external resources was based on known allocations at December 
2017. However, the forecasts for both external and internal financing would 
be updated over the coming months in accordance with relevant government 
and other public and private spending announcements. 
 
Members noted that the Department for Education had not made their funding 
allocations known beyond this financial year but they would be fed in to the 
programme as soon as they were available. 
 
Officers provided an overview of the major projects going forwards which 
were detailed in section 8 of the report, including the Town Hall refurbishment 
Programme. Members noted that as proposals for this firmed up they would 
be further fed into the Capital Programme. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked for further details to be provided on the 
Housing Development Programme. In response Kathleen Corbett, HCH 
Director of Finance and Resources, provided an explanation of the phasing 
and funding implications as detailed in section 8.4 of the report and 
comments were provided on expenditure outside the cap? 
 
Chris Littmoden asked officers what the financial model was for the delivery of 
affordable homes. Officers were asked if a model could be provided for H&F 
delivery of affordable homes over the next 5 to 10 years. In response, Officers 
confirmed that it would be possible to construct a 30 or 50 year model which 
would be based on discounted cash flows and for officers to meet with PAC 
members to discuss how the model worked. 
 
Action: Kathleen Corbett 
 
Councillor Lucy Ivimy asked about the invest to save initiatives operated. In 
response, Emily Hill provided an overview of the flexible use of capital 
receipts as detailed in Appendix 5 and drew the Committee’s attention to the 
type of projects which had been identified on page 140 of the report. Officers 
were asked if these projects were one off expenditure to which officers 
explained that capital funding was used to deliver ongoing reserves through 
saving. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked how may new homes the decent 
neighbourhoods Scheme would deliver? Officers confirmed that they were 
unsure of a precise figure and information would need to be provided outside 
the meeting. 
 
Action: Kathleen Corbett 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
RESOLVED  
To note that recommendations 2.2 to 2.7 would be put before Budget Council 
in February 2018. 
 

17. CORPORATE REVENUE MONITOR (MONTH 6) - FOR INFORMATION  
 
Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Finance Director) introduced the report which 
provided details of the revenue expenditure position for the Council and its 
departments. It was noted that The General Fund 2017/18 forecast outturn 
variance for month 6 was a gross overspend of £4.669m an improvement of 
£0.218m since month 5.  
 
The Committee learnt that the budget area forecasting the largest overspend 
was General Fund Housing. Factors included, rent inflation, an increase in the 
number of clients housed in both temporary accommodation and Bed and 
Breakfast, and competition with other local authorities bidding for properties 
were pushing up costs. He explained that the Council was also having to fund 
incentive payments to landlords to secure accommodation. £0.956m of 
planned savings had also not been realised.  
 
Details were provided on the forecast overspend outturn variances reported 
by other departments and in overspend value order, these were: 
 

1) Children’s Services, primarily due to Commissioning, Education, and 

Family Services 

2) Adult Social Care, experiencing pressures within the Home Care and 

Direct Payments budgets 

3) Corporate Services due mainly to overspends on Building and Property 

management 

4) Environmental Services, due to Environmental Health salary budget 

pressures 

5) Libraries & Archives, due to non-delivery of planned savings 

6) Centrally Managed Budgets, due to low interest rates on cash 

balances. 

Concluding the meeting, The Chair thanked the Strategic Finance Director 
and his respective team for the answers which had been provided throughout 
the meeting and commented he had been impressed with the responses the 
Committee had received. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

18. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The date of the next meeting is Tuesday 20 March 2018. 
 

Page 12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Meeting started: 7:00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9:47 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Charles Francis 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2062 
 E-mail: charles.francis@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 13



 

Page 1 of 29 
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts 

Policy and Accountability Committee 
 

4th JULY 2018 
 

 

 

2017/18 CORPORATE REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services – Councillor 
Max Schmid 
 

Report Status : Open Report 
 

Classification – For Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara – Strategic Director, Finance & Governance 
 

Report Author: 
Gary Ironmonger – Finance Manager 
Andrew Lord – Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2109 
E-mail: 
Gary.Ironmonger@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act requires the Chief 

Financial Officer (as the responsible officer) to ensure proper 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs. This report is the 
concluding part of the Council’s 2017/18 budgetary control cycle. 
Budgetary control, which includes the regular monitoring of and 
reporting on budgets, is an essential requirement placed on Cabinet 
Members, the Chief Executive, and Directors in discharging the 
statutory responsibility. 
 

1.2. The Councils’ Accounts are closed a month ahead of the statutory 
deadline of 31st May 2018 and are subject to external audit. The 
outcome of the audit will be reported to the July Audit Committee. 
 

1.3. The provisional General Fund departmental revenue outturn variance is 
an unfavourable £1.660 after applying unused contingency budgets. 
The council identified section 106 (S106) funding to mitigate the 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 29 
 

additional pressures and costs arising from new developments, so the 
consolidated final position is a net break even. 

 
1.4. Within this overall position there is a significant overspend in Children’s 

Services of £3.2m and an overspend in Corporate Services of £0.5m.  
 

1.5. The High Needs Block, funded through Dedicated Schools Grant, 
overspent by £5.5m in 2017/18.  
 

1.6. The provisional HRA variance is £0.052m (Table 2). The reasons for 
the overspend are explained in Appendix 2. Overall HRA general 
balances have reduced by £10.183m to £9.946m. This is attributable to 
the budget variance of £0.052m, the budgeted use of balances of 
£1.382m and the transfer of £8.749m to earmarked reserves.  Overall 
HRA reserves at the year-end have increased to £52m. 

 
1.7. General Fund Balances have remained unchanged at £19.004m. 

Earmarked Reserves increased from £82.986m to £94.944m. In part 
this is due to a decision to capitalise invest to save costs of £5.8m and 
a technical adjustment relating to business rate appeals of £5.2m 
(which will reverse out in 2018/19).  
 

1.8. Total capital expenditure for the year was £73.6m.  This comprised 
expenditure in the General Fund of £35.6m and £38m in the HRA.    

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. To note, subject to audit, the General Fund overspend of £1.660m net 

of unused budgeted contingency. This has reduced to a consolidated 
net break even position through draw down of additional section 106 
resources of £1.6m 
 

2.2. To note the provisional HRA variance is £0.052m (table 2). Overall 
HRA general balances have reduced by £10.183m to £9.946m. This is 
attributable to the budget variance of £0.052m, the budgeted use of 
balances of £1.382m and the transfer of £8.749m to specific reserves. 
 

2.3. To note that general fund earmarked reserves are £94.99m and 
general balances are £19.0m as at 31st March 2018, subject to audit. 

 
2.4. To note the capital outturn of £73.6m. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
3.1. To confirm the financial position as at 31st March 2018. This report 

outlines the provisional revenue outturn position, income and 
expenditure for 2017/18, and the consequent effect on the Council’s 
levels of balances and reserves. 
 

4. GENERAL FUND OUTTURN 

Page 15



 

Page 3 of 29 
 

 
Table 1: Draft General Fund Outturn 2017/181 

 

Department 
Revised 
Budget 

Actual Gross Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Adult Social Care 60.467 60.491 0.024 

Centrally Managed 
Budgets 

29.943 29.906 (0.037) 

Children’s Services 57.206 60.427 3.221 

Controlled Parking 
Account 

(22.511) (23.154) (0.643) 

Corporate Services 20.173 20.725 0.552 

Environmental 
Services 

46.887 47.254 0.367 

Housing & 
Regeneration 

11.924 11.907 (0.017) 

Libraries & Archives 
Service 

2.843 2.856 0.013 

Public Health 0.000 0.000 0.0002 

Total Departmental 206.932 210.412 3.480 

Remaining Budgeted 
Contingency 

1.880   (1.880) 

Variance against 
budget 

208.812 210.412 1.600 

Use of additional S106 
funds 

    (1.600) 

Final Position     0.000 

 
 
4.1. Additional S106 funding was used to mitigate the additional pressures 

and costs arising from new developments.  
 

4.2. A detailed explanation of the variances in the table above is provided in 
Appendix 1.  
 

 
5. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT  

 
5.1. Dedicated schools grant (DSG) is paid in support of local authority 

schools budgets, being the main source of income for the schools’ 
budget. This is split between central expenditure and the individual 
schools budget (ISB) in conjunction with the local schools’ forum. 

                                            
1
 Figures in brackets are underspends. 

2
 Public Health is funded through ring-fenced grant. The nil variance identifies that no 

additional council contribution was required. The actual drawdown of grant was £546k less 
than budgeted. The unspent grant carries forward to 2018/19.  

Page 16



 

Page 4 of 29 
 

 
5.2. The High Needs Block funding has come under increased pressure in 

recent years. The latest position is set out in Table 2. This forecast 
includes an agreed transfer of funds in 2018/19 of £506k from the 
Schools’ block to the High Needs block. 
 
Table 2 – Dedicated Schools Grant Update 
 

Dedicated Schools Grant Deficit b/fwd to 2017/18 £1.5m 

2017/18 High Needs Block Overspend £5.5m 

Cumulative Deficit c/fwd to 2018/19 £7m 

 
 

5.3. The financial pressure is ongoing due to insufficient funding from 
government. Children’s Services are requesting additional funding from 
the Education Funding Agency to address a shortfall in funding from 
government compared to the number of students in the borough with 
special educational needs.  
 
 

6. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN 
 

6.1. The HRA provisional variance is £0.052m. The reasons for the 
overspend are reported in a separate HRA outturn report. Overall HRA 
general balances have reduced by £10.183m to £9.946m. This is 
largely due to a transfer to specific reserves of £8.749m. 

 
Table 3: 2017/18 Housing Revenue Account Outturn 

 

Housing Revenue Account £m 

Balance 31 March 2017 (20.129) 

Budgeted use of balances 1.382 

HRA variance 0.052 

Transfer to specific reserves 8.749 

Balance 31st March 2018 (9.946) 

 
  

Page 17



 

Page 5 of 29 
 

7. RESERVES3, BALANCES AND PROVISIONS4 
 
 

7.1. General Fund Balances remain at £19.004m (4% of the gross budget 
excluding Housing Benefit transfer payments). This is within the range 
of £14m to £20m agreed as part of the Council’s Budget.  Maintaining 
balances within this range is considered prudent given budget 
pressures and risks. 
 

7.2. General Fund earmarked reserves total £94.994m at the close of 
2017/18 an increase of £12m from the 2017/18 opening balance of 
£82.986. This increase is mainly due to: 

 The Council has made use of the Government’s provisions for the 
flexible use of capital receipts to fund invest to save costs of 
£5.8m. 

 A technical adjustment of £5.2m relating to business rates. The 
Council has had to set aside this sum to meet the cost of appeals 
with funding coming from government safety net grant. 

 An increase of £2.2m in government grants and section 106 
contributions carried forward. 

 
7.3. Initial review indicates that at least £40m of the earmarked reserves 

have a restricted use (such as £6.3m for the Insurance Fund or £6.3m 
for grants and section contributions) or are committed (such as £5.2m 
for business rates).  
 

7.4. HRA reserves are £52m and are set out in the HRA outturn report. 
Departmental analysis (the figures will be updated in line with the new 
departmental structures for 2018/19) is shown in table 4 and further 
detail in appendix 2. 
 

7.5. Provisions have increased by £1.958m to £10.078m and are detailed in 
appendix 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
3
 Reserves in general balances are amounts set aside which are for future policy purposes or 

to cover contingencies. Earmarked reserves are for specific expenditure or projects only. 

4
 A provision is an amount set aside for liabilities anticipated in the future which cannot always 

be accurately quantified. A provision is for a present obligation as the result of a past event. 

Page 18



 

Page 6 of 29 
 

Table 4: General Fund Earmarked Reserves, Balances & 
Provisions at 31 March 2018 

 

Department 
31 March 

2017  
£m 

31 March 
2018 

£m 

Adult Social Care 3.722 3.442 

Children’s Services 2.342 3.850 

Corporate5  64.733 73.459 

Environmental Services 8.548 5.499 

Libraries 0.058 0.004 

Housing and Regeneration 3.673 8.740 

General Fund Earmarked 
Reserves 

82.986 94.994 

Provisions 8.119 10.078 

General Balances 19.004 19.004 

Total 110.109 124.076 
 

 
8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 
8.1. Total capital expenditure for the financial year was £73.6m. This 

comprised expenditure in the General Fund of £49.8m and £23.8m in 
the HRA.  
 

8.2. A summary of capital expenditure by department and capital financing 
is included below.  

 
Table 5 - Capital Expenditure and Funding Summary 2017/18 

 

Department  
2017/18 

£'000 

Adult Social Care 393 

Children's Services 17,409 

Environmental Services 10,704 

Finance and Corporate Services  5,790 

Housing Revenue Account 23,766 

Housing and Regeneration  14,148 

General Fund Schemes under Housing 
Management 1,344 

Total  73,556 
 
 

                                            
5
 These include £8.2m of reserves, such as insurance, that are effectively ring-fenced or, if 

used, expose the Council to risk 

Page 19



 

Page 7 of 29 
 

Capital Financing  
2017/18 

£'000 

Capital Receipts 22,345 

Increase in Capital Finance Requirement (CFR) 6,550 

Capital Grants and Contributions 26,644 

Major Repairs Reserve 16,261 

Council and School Reserves 1,703 

Housing Revenue Account 37 

General Fund Revenue Account 15 

Total  73,556 

 

 
9. CONSULTATION 

 
9.1. With Departments and Strategic Leadership Team. 

 
10. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1. Cabinet is asked to note the Corporate Revenue outturn for 2017/18.  It 

is not asked to make any decisions nor take any action, hence there 
are no equality implications arising from this report. 

 
10.2. Implications completed by: Peter Smith, Head of Policy & Strategy, tel. 

020 8753 2206. 
 

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

11.1. There are no legal implications within this report. 
 

11.2. Implications verified/completed by: Adesuwa Omoregie, Principal 
Solicitor, 020 8753 2297. 

 
12. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
12.1. This report is of a financial nature and the financial implications are 

contained within, which is subject to audit review. 
 

12.2. Implications verified/completed by: Gary Ironmonger, Finance Manager 
0208 753 2109. 

 
13. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

 
13.1. There are no direct implications for local businesses. 

 
13.2. Implications verified/completed by: Albena Karameros, Economic 

Development Team, tel. 020 7938 8583  
 
14. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Page 20



 

Page 8 of 29 
 

14.1. There are no immediate commercial implications in this report. 
 

14.2. Implications verified/completed by: Joanna Angelides on behalf of 
Simon Davis.  Tel: 020 7361 2586  

 
15. IT IMPLICATIONS 

 
15.1. There are no IT implications contained within this report. 

 
15.2. Completed by: Veronica Barella, Chief Information Officer, Tel 200 

8753 2927. 
 

16. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

16.1. The Council operates in an increasing risk environment of reduced 
council funding and austerity measures imposed by national 
government, increasing financial pressures due to cost inflation and 
demographic pressures. The Council has monitored this corporate risk 
though the year and has adopted as one of its key priorities to be 
ruthlessly financially efficient so as to continue to achieve the best 
service for our residents from council staff and contractors in line with 
our corporate risk to meet our communities ongoing needs and 
expectations. There is a risk that pressures will continue to provide a 
challenge in 2018/19.  
 

16.2. Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager 0208 753 
2587. 

 
 
17. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

 None   

 
  

Page 21



 

Page 9 of 29 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Departmental Analysis – General Fund 2017/18 Revenue 

Outturn 
 

 Adult Social Care 

 Centrally Managed Budgets 

 Children’s Services 

 Controlled Parking Account 

 Corporate Services 

 Environmental Services 

 Housing & Regeneration 

 Libraries (Shared Services) 

 Public Health 
 
Appendix 2 Earmarked Reserves 
 
Appendix 3 Provisions 

Page 22



 

Page 10 of 29 
 

APPENDIX 1: 
 

DEPARTMENTAL ANALYSIS – GENERAL FUND 2017/18 REVENUE OUTTURN 
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE (ASC) 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Integrated Care  45,541 102 

The main variances are: 
 
Better Care Fund savings shortfall of £185,000. Within the base budget is an MTFS 
efficiency of £2m following previous negotiations with Health over the Better Care 
Fund. The efficiency target had various target measures to deliver savings by the 
avoidance of care in placements, savings in jointly commissioned contracts and 
securing lower prices. The department delivered efficiencies in residential and nursing 
placements which resulted in a reduction in placements spend of (£1,815,000). 
 
Minor underspend of (£24,000) on Home Care and Direct Payments. There is an 
improvement in the position of (£114,000) since the month 9 forecast with the review 
of high cost packages in a safe & sustainable level reducing the overall costs. 
Throughout the year the total spend has increased compared with the previous year 
due to pressures as part of the out of hospital strategy to support people at home and 
avoid hospital admissions or to enable early discharge which has led to an increase in 
home care costs above that which is normally expected. The Home Care and Direct 
payment rates increased due to the London living wage increases which resulted in 

P
age 23



 

Page 11 of 29 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

additional pressures.  
 
Mental Health Services outturn position of £447,000 overspend. The outturn 
position improved by (£235,000) since month 9 forecast due to management actions in 
reviewing placements leading to a reduction in costs. This service continued to have 
increasing number of placements with the full year effect of new people and increases 
above inflation leading to budget pressures of £264,000. In Mental Health, Home Care 
and Direct Payment pressures amounted to £183,000 overspend. 
 
Learning Disability (LD) services outturn position of (£638,000) underspend. The 
underspend improved by (£210,000) since the month 9 forecast due to continued 
management actions from the reviews leading to reduction of cost of care in LD 
packages and placement.  The placement budget underspent by (£356,000) mainly to 
the continued review of the high cost placements, the supported living service 
underspent by (£209,000) and there was a net underspend on the Home Care / Direct 
Payment budgets of (£73,000) with an overall reduction of 14 service users by year 
end.   
 
In – House services overspent by £131,000. The outturn position reflected the 
continued to be demand pressures in Careline to fund a 24/7 service.  
 

Strategic 
Commissioning 
& Enterprise 

6,022 42 
 
 

P
age 24



 

Page 12 of 29 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Finance & 
Resources 

8,338 (15) 
 
 

Executive 
Directorate 

566 (105) 
Underspend against Workforce & Development service within the Directorate and 
Executive Support Division. 

Total 60,467 24  

 

P
age 25



 

Page 13 of 29 
 

CENTRALLY MANAGED BUDGETS 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Corporate & 
Democratic 
Core 

4,081 (237) 
There was an underspend on Banking Charges of £216k due to the corrections of banking 
charges from 2015/16.  This included the recognition that some of these charges were 
related to parking operations. 

Housing  
Benefits and 
other 
Corporate 
Items 

12,644 (266) 
The variance on Housing Benefits payments is due to continued high performance in 
collecting outstanding Housing Benefits overpayments. 

Levies 1,571 (36)  

Net Cost of 
Borrowing 

32 613 
The unfavourable variance on Net Cost of Borrowing is due to the low level of interest 
rates. These continue to be below historic levels and the increases towards normalisation 
were slower than anticipated. 

Pensions & 
Redundancy 

11,615 (111) 
A favourable variance of £111k on the cost unfunded pensions created because of historic 
redundancy decisions. 

Sub -Total 29,943 (37)   

Contingency 1,880 (1,880) Unused Contingency Budgets 

Total 31,823 (1,917)   

 

P
age 26



 

Page 14 of 29 
 

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES DEPARTMENT (CHS) 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Family 
Services 

28,418 1,407 

The overspend is a combination of Looked After Children/Leaving Care Placement and 
Staffing overspends. An increase in more complex higher cost cases were placed during 
the latter part of the year. The forecast was ratified by a detailed line by line financial review 
to validate all placement lines which identified some process improvement issues which are 
being put in train in 2018/19.  
 
The final year end variance for placements was offset by higher than expected grant 
income and a placements underspend in fostering and adoption.  
 
There are staffing pressures in the Family Support and Child protection service due to an 
increase in activity and caseloads resulting in a need to recruit additional agency workers 
to cover unallocated cases. Staffing pressures are also evident in the Contact and 
Assessment service.   

Education 7,699 1,441 

The main variances are: 

 Staffing overspends £592k  

 Short breaks placements, including The Haven £372k.  

 SEN transport £100k and recoupment shortfall £202k.  

 Traded income targets fell short of £150k. 

 Other minor variances £25k. 
 

P
age 27



 

Page 15 of 29 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Commissioning 5,081 620 
Staffing overspend due to use of interims and supernumerary staff delivering department 
wide projects which were outside of the Commissioning baseline capacity.  Additionally, 
there was a baseline budget pressure because of the 2016 restructure. 

Safeguarding, 
Review and 
Quality 
Assurance 

1,757 (26)  

Finance and 
Resources 

5,842 (221) 
Staffing pressures budget held in Finance & Resources and partially mitigating pressures 
across the service. Will be dispersed across the department in 2018/19 as part of a post 
level budgeting exercise to ensure 2018/19 budgets reflect agreed structures. 

Schools 
Funding 

8,409 0  

Total 57,206 3,221  

 

 

 

P
age 28



 

Page 16 of 29 
 

CONTROLLED PARKING ACCOUNT (CPA) 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Pay & Display 
(P&D) 

(12,145)  
 

(2,093)  
 

The Council has seen increased receipts from the roll-out of cashless phone parking. The 
number of people using phone parking has continued to increase significantly since the roll 
out commenced October 2016 and was completed in February 2018.  The take up of 
phone parking is now more than 80%. Of the remaining income coming from the new pay 
and display machines, 71% is by card. This has led to a reduction of cash receipts and the 
risk of theft on-street. 

Permits 
(4,496)  

 
(87) 

 
 

Penalty Charge 
Notices (PCNs) 

(14,386)  
 

(543)  
 

Better income recovery of PCN debt during the first half of this financial year has 
increased income. This is a one-off occurrence in this financial year due to the successful 
clearing of a backlog of registering cases and warrants from the previous year due to IT 
problems with the Traffic Enforcement Centre (TEC) which must approve council 
applications for registration of debt and issuance of warrants.    
 
Following a major recruitment exercise during the summer 2017, 11 Civil Enforcement 
Officers were recruited to return the service to a full establishment (58 FTEs).  

Parking Bay 
Suspensions 

(3,223)  
 

898  
 

The number of Parking Suspension requests has significantly dropped this year. Outside 
factors dictate this such as property development levels, house moves, utility works etc. 

Towaways and 
Removals 

(325)  
 

56  
 

 

P
age 29



 

Page 17 of 29 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

Expenditure 
and Other 
Receipts 

12,064 
 

1,126 
 

There have been significant additional costs of approximately £900K arising from the roll 
out of phone parking. These include contract costs, maintenance, and credit/debit card 
processing costs. Cash collection expenditure rose due to the delay in procurement of the 
pay and display machine replacement project. 
There was an additional spend of £112K on staff for work that was originally to be charged 
to the appropriate capital fund but was ultimately charged to revenue. 

Total 
(22,511) 

 
(643) 

 
 

 

 P
age 30



 

Page 18 of 29 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

H&F Direct 15,782 (27)  

Human 
Resources & 
Electoral 
Services 

1,396 (143) 
 
Underspends relating to employee costs. 
 

Finance & Audit 238 (89)  

Delivery & Value 2,037 62  

Executive 
Services 

523 (61)  

Commercial 
Directorate 

465 468 
£379k undelivered income against target for external business intelligence work/ sales 
(budget £633k, outturn £254k); £89k other overspends. 

Legal Services (437) 304 Under recovery of income on the trading account. 

ICT Services 160 (96)  

Public Service 
Reform 

10 134 
Costs incurred in advance of the formal establishment of the new department from 1 
April 2018. 

Total 20,173 552  

 

P
age 31



 

Page 19 of 29 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES (ES) 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

  £000 £000  

Transport and 
Highways,  

14,652 320 
£203k - unachievable savings targets  
£120k - lower than anticipated staffing costs recharged to projects 

Parks & Leisure 4,607 (51)  

Environmental Health, 
Community Safety & 
Emergency Planning 

7,440 (151) 

£115k - New commercial income targets for deployable CCTV (£100k) and 
Professional Witnesses (£15k) not delivered.  
(£241k) Registrars salary underspend (£117k) due to recruitment delays 
(caused by delays in regrading posts) and Registrars income overachievement 
(£124k).  
(£25k) – other smaller net variances. 

Cleaner, Greener & 
Cultural Services 

9,145 (94) 

£100k - Target for Parks and Markets Events not delivered. 
£149k - Forecast shortfall on filming income partly due to the delay in the 
opening of the Location Library.  
(£387k) - Forecast underspend on waste disposal due to continuation of 
reduced rate for processing recycling. 

Other LBHF Commercial 
Services 

(223) 106 

£135k – Income shortfall on the non-guaranteed income element of the ducting 
contract. 
(£36k) – Business Improvement staffing underspend due to posts held vacant, 
pending review of service. 

Executive Support and 
Finance 

1,322 (97)  

ES Managed Sub-Total 36,943 33  

P
age 32



 

Page 20 of 29 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

Waste and Street 
Enforcement (Corporate 
Services – Commercial 
Director managed) 

11,711 (32)  

Building and Property 
Management (Corporate 
Services – Commercial 
Director managed) 

(1,767) 366 

£1,114k - Shortfall in advertising hoarding income.   
£106k - Unachievable Building Control income due to the current economic 
environment.  
£84k - Unachievable rental income on Galena Road site and repairs liability for 
Lyric Theatre.  
(£290k) - Civic Accommodation. Although there was a shortfall in rental income 
on Lila Hussett, the effect was more than offset by an NNDR refund for Fulham 
Town Hall and Hammersmith Town Hall. 
(£311k) - Underspend on Total Facilities Management contractor’s costs. 
(£364k) - Mainly underspends from Valuation Services on Laser energy 
rebates, staff recharges and underspends on contractors’ costs.    

ES Total 46,887 367  

 
 

P
age 33



 

Page 21 of 29 
 

HOUSING & REGENERATION - GENERAL FUND 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

  £000 £000  

Housing Solutions 5,984 (32) 

Temporary Accommodation 
 
Temporary accommodation pressures were offset by the Flexible Homelessness Support 
Grant as detailed below.  
 
Inflationary pressure on temporary accommodation (TA) rents from private landlords 
has resulted in an overspend of £1,217k. This is comprised of: 

 £261k direct inflationary pressure compared to 16/17 prices mostly on properties 
acquired through the West London managing agents’ framework agreement where 
agents are demanding rent rises on homes in their portfolio already occupied by 
households in temporary accommodation (£143k of the £261k). This overspend has 
been reduced in recent months because of mitigating action taken reducing expensive 
properties in the portfolio. 

 £956k of savings on the net rental cost assumed in the budget that are not being 
realised despite pursuing more longer-term leases.  

 
There has also been an increase in average client numbers, from a budget of 782 units 
to an outturn of 939 (930 at CRM 10), that has resulted in an over spend of £496k.  
 
The impact of the loss of the management fee has resulted in an over spend of 
£1,934k, although this is offset in this year by the grant received below.  

P
age 34



 

Page 22 of 29 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

  £000 £000  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
There is an underspend of (£107k) (reduced from £232k overspend in CRM10 mostly 
because of the application of Discretionary Housing Benefit) on the bad debt provision 
despite continuing pressures on income collection resulting from the implementation of 
Universal Credit. 
 
Incentive payments to private sector landlords have exceeded the budget by £103k. 
Major landlords have threatened to withdraw their homes from us within a month unless 
we pay them additional sums, again this is happening a lot on properties acquired 
through the West London managing agents’ framework agreement. For example, we are 
having to pay £1,000 per property to retain 31 TA units that are currently occupied 
provided by one of these agents. Officers are working on plans to procure alternative 
accommodation. 
 
Flexible Homelessness Support Grant provided by CLG (£3.417m) to cushion the 
impact of the removal of the management fee for Temporary Accommodation (after 
deducting £110,000 which we expect Registered Providers to claim). CLG have stated 
the aim is to ‘empower LAs with the freedom to support the full range of homelessness 
services they deliver’ and plan their provisions with more certainty. It should be noted that 
so far this is only promised for 17/18, reducing in 18/19 to (£3.381m) and further reducing 
in 19/20 to (£2.805m) so there is a risk of budget pressure in these years and even more 
so immediately thereafter. 
 
Bed and Breakfast 
Increases in Bed and Breakfast accommodation net costs due to continuing increasing 

P
age 35



 

Page 23 of 29 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

  £000 £000  

inflationary pressures on rents has resulted in an adverse variance of £61k.  
 
Higher average client numbers (165 at outturn vs 134 in the budget) has resulted in an 
adverse variance of £49k. The overspend on the bad debt provision is £110k (£92k at 
CRM 10). This is due to continuing pressures on income collection due to the 
implementation of Universal Credit. 
 
Other 
Repair costs on PSL properties have exceeded the budget by £140k, and legal costs 
relating to disrepair and complex cases have overspent by £120k. 
 
A detailed review of salary apportionments, which included looking at practices 
elsewhere, has resulted in an additional salary recharge to HRA for the Assessment 
teams in Housing Solutions of (£53k). 
 
Vacancies on TA procurement team resulted in an underspend of (£58k) as did lower 
than expected Rent Deposit Scheme Damage Claim (£14k). 
 
In addition, a number of grants from Government have produced additional income this 
year (£381k). Also, funds received from the developer to contribute to decant costs 
associated with the sale of Lavender Court have produced a favourable variance 
(£234k). 

Housing Strategy 396 0  

Economic Development, 1,454 22  

P
age 36



 

Page 24 of 29 
 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

  £000 £000  

Learning & Skills 

Development & 
Regeneration 

92 0  

Housing Services 988 (14)  

Planning 2,409 0 

Development Management - A shortfall in planning fee income of £329k has been 
partially offset by reductions in staff costs of (£126k). In addition, there are overspends on 
supplies and services £141k, as well as, £105k on legal costs. 
Planning Regeneration - Higher than budgeted staffing costs of £255k are offset by 
additional planning fee income of (£598k). In addition, the division has overspent by £80k 
on non-staff running costs and legal costs. 
Planning Director's Office – the (£117k) variance relates primarily to the vacant Director 
of Planning role. 
Policy – this relates to underspends on staffing (£26k) and legal costs (£43k). 

Finance & Resources 601 7  

Total 11,924 (17)  

 

P
age 37



 

Page 25 of 29 
 

LIBRARIES & ARCHIVES (SHARED SERVICE) 

 
Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 

 

Departmental Division 
Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000  

Shared Service - Libraries & Archives 2,843 13 None to report 

Total 2,843 13  

 
 P

age 38



 

Page 26 of 29 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH 
 

Variance Analysis by Departmental Division 

 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances (over £100k) 

 £000 £000   

Public Health Grant 
Income 

(22,338) 0 N/A 

Sexual Health 5,554 248 Increased demand for sexual health screening tests resulted in overspend. 

Substance Misuse 4,570 (958) 
Performance incentives were not triggered in core contracts due to decreased 
service demand. Additional funding for demand-risk were also not required in year. 

Behaviour Change 2,411 (187) Health Trainers contract ended in-year, leading to a contract saving. 

Intelligence and 
Social Determinants 

33 (6) N/A 

Families and 
Children’s Services 

6,215 (88) N/A 

Public Health 
Investment Fund 

4,162 (75) N/A 

Salaries and 
Overheads 

1,208 520 
Increased recharges from support services and increased use of agency staff prior 
to restructure. 

Contribution to or 
from (-) Public Health 
balances  

(1,811) 546 
Use of prior years’ grant receipts in advance which is ringfenced for use on Public 
Health expenditure.  

Total 0 0  

 

P
age 39



 

Page 27 of 29 
 

APPENDIX 2: EARMARKED RESERVES 
 
 

  

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2017 

Transfers 
Out 

2017/18 

Transfers 
In 

2017/18 

Movement 
Between 
Reserves 
2017/18 

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2018 

  
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

 
General Fund 

    
  

1 Insurance Fund (6,342) 665 (635) - (6,312) 

2 Controlled Parking Fund (1,054) 228 (521) - (1,347) 

3 Computer Replacement Fund (1,182) - - 1,182 - 

4 IT Infrastructure (2,388) - (800) 3,188 - 

5 Efficiency Projects Reserve (15,749) - (3,785) 1,897 (17,637) 

6 Corporate Demand Pressures (7,531) 571 - (4,516) (11,476) 

7 Dilapidations/Office Moves (3,327) 552 (138) 2,913 - 

8 Housing Benefit  (2,248) - - 2,248 - 

9 Planning Inquiries  - - - - - 

10 LPFA Sub Fund (1,272) - (128) - (1,400) 

11 Imperial Wharf  - - - - - 

12 Temporary Accommodation (3,506) 582 (286) - (3,210) 

13 ASC Pressures & Demands (1,878) - - - (1,878) 

14 Human Resources Reserve (920) - - 920 - 

15 Capital Reserves (1,946) 1,010 - - (936) 

16 
Supporting People 
Programme 

(1,509) 300 - - (1,209) 

17 
CHS Shared Service 
Integration 

- - - - - 

18 MTFS Delivery Risk (5,625) - - 5,470 (155) 

19 Legal Fees Reserve - - - - - 

20 VAT Reserve (2,500) - - 2,500 - 

21 Business Board Reserve (1,080) - - 1,080 - 

22 TFM Reserve (853) 500 (1,153) - (1,506) 

23 3SIF Grant Reserve (1,008) 280 - 8 (720) 

24 Troubled Families (817) - (258) - (1,075) 

25 NDR Deficit Support (3,208) - (5,255) 3,209 (5,254) 

26 Stock Options Appraisal (1,009) - - 1,009 - 

27 Partners in Practice (852) - (695) - (1,547) 

28 Redundancy Reserves (3,747) - - 3,747 - 

29 King Street West (516) 154 - (994) (1,356) 

30 Managed Services (279) 2,714 (3,891) (7,835) (9,291) 

31 Corporate People Reserve - 364 - (4,000) (3,636) 

32 Corporate Technology & IT - - - (6,950) (6,950) 

33 
Corporate Financial 
Resilience Reserve 

- - - (3,000) (3,000) 

Page 40



 

Page 28 of 29 
 

  

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2017 

Transfers 
Out 

2017/18 

Transfers 
In 

2017/18 

Movement 
Between 
Reserves 
2017/18 

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2018 

  
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

34 Corporate Property Reserve - 280 - (4,076) (3,796) 

35 Other Funds (6,234) 404 (860) 1,675 (5,015) 

 
General Fund Reserves (78,580) 8,604 (18,405) (324) (88,705) 

       

 
General Fund Revenue 
Grants      

36 S106 - Revenue Schemes (3,784) 606 (2,158) - (5,336) 

37 Other Revenue Grants (622) - (655) 324 (953) 

 
Revenue Grants Sub-Total (4,406) 606 (2,813) 324 (6,289) 

  
          

 
General Fund Total (82,986) 9,210 (21,218) - (94,994) 

       
       

 
 
 

  

Page 41



 

Page 29 of 29 
 

 
APPENDIX 3: PROVISIONS 

 

 Insurance 
 

£000 

Non-Domestic 
Rates (NDR) - 

Losses on 
Appeals 

£000 

Other 
Provisions6 

£000 

Total 
 

£000 

Balance at 31 March 
2017 

(2.656) (4.717) (0.747) (8.120) 

Additional provisions  (12,259) (226) (12,485) 

Amounts used  9,892   

Unused amounts 
reversed 

626    

Balance at 31 March 
2018 

(2,030) (7,084) (964) (10,078) 

 

                                            
6
 Other Provisions of £0.964m are to cover Housing Revenue Account legal fees, disrepair 

cases and disputed capital works, school meals contract pension liability and Sen transport 
litigation 
 

Page 42



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
FINANCE, COMMERCIAL REVENUE AND 

CONTRACTS POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY 
COMMITTEE 
4 JULY 2018 

 

 

RESIDENTS’ SERVICES REPORT – REVENUE REPORT 2018/19 
 

Report of the Director of Residents’ Services - Nick Austin 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
Not applicable. 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Nick Austin, Director of Residents’ Services 
 

Report Author: Mark Jones, Director for 
Finance, Residents’ Services 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 6700 
E-mail: mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. At this early stage, parking is forecasting that it will end the year £413k 

favourable against budget. Residents’ services is forecasting that it will end 
the year £753k adverse against budget.  Taken together, the forecast is for an 
adverse variance of £340k if mitigating actions were not taken.  
 

1.2. Officers will work to address this variance. This will include identifying new 
external funding for transport & highways projects and addressing areas of 
commercial revenue not yet secured.  

 
1.3. It should be noted that parking revenues are always uncertain as they vary 

according to driver behaviour, so the Council may see a different position in 
parking as the year unfolds.  
 

1.4. Residents’ services have wide-ranging sources of income, which are detailed 
in Appendix 3. 

 
 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. The Committee is asked to note this report and comment on measures that 
should be considered. 

 
3. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

 
Overall Financial Forecast 2018/19 

 
3.1. The more detailed forecasts are contained in Appendix 1 (Residents’ 

services), and Appendix 2 (Parking).  The latter forms part of Residents’ 
services but is reported separately. 
 

3.2. Parking revenue is above that expected due to the introduction of cashless 
parking which has increased revenues.  Parking is forecast to end the year 
£413k above budget.  However, parking revenues are volatile so the actual 
financial performance will only become apparent once we have more income 
data as the year progresses. 
 

3.3. Cleaner greener services is forecast to underspend by £206k because waste 
tonnages last year were lower than budgeted and that is forecast to continue 
in 2018/19.  Recycling rates have been improving slightly and the Council is 
also benefitting from a reduced rate for disposal of each tonne of recyclate. 
 

3.4. Transport & highways is forecast to overspend by £420k because of a number 
of savings initiatives that are proving hard to deliver, and because there are 
some costs that may not be chargeable to projects. 
 

3.5. Environmental Health, Community Safety and Emergency Planning is forecast 
to overspend by £288k mainly because of new commercial income initiatives 
for the sale of CCTV services and professional witness services to other 
organisations that have not yet been delivered.  There are also shortfalls on 
licensing income, and cost pressures in fleet management. 
 

3.6. Other commercial services refers to the Council’s concession contract that it 
awarded for the commercial exploitation of its underground ducting system.  
The Council is receiving income, but revenues have not met expectations and 
so is negotiating to prevent the concession holder terminating the contract. 
 

3.7. Libraries is due to be included in the Residents’ services in the future.  It is 
forecasting that it will be on budget for 2018/19. 
 
Services with significant sources of income 
 

3.8. Appendix A sets out in detail the incomes earning by specific service areas. 
 

3.9. Some service areas are traded in a commercial environment: 
 

 Commercial waste 

 Events and lettings 

Page 44



 

 

 Sports bookings 

 Duct assets 

 Filming 
 

3.10. Some income earning services are regulatory where typically charges are not 
set by the Council: 
 

 Environmental Health licensing 

 Highways licensing (network assurance) 

 Street enforcement 
 

3.11. Other services receiving income are governed by law (Parking), or funded by 
external sources (Highways maintenance and Projects). 
 

3.12. Services traded in a commercial environment do not have to be provided by 
the Council.  Where the Council chooses to provide them it wants to make 
sure that the costs of directly providing the services are more than covered by 
the income, and a contribution to fixed Council overheads is achieved.  

 
4. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1. This report is for information only.  There are no equalities implications. 

 
4.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author. 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1. This report is for information only.  There are no legal implications. 

 
5.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author. 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1. Financial implications are contained within the body of the report.  

 
6.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author. 

 
7. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

 
7.1. This report is for information only.  There are no implications for business. 
 
7.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author. 
 
8. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1. This report is for information only.  There are no commercial implications. 
 
13.1 Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author.   

 
9. IT IMPLICATIONS  

Page 45



 

 

 
9.1. This report is for information only.  There are no commercial implications.  

 
9.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author.  
 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
10.1. Financial risks and challenges are discussed in the body of the report. 

 
10.2. Implications completed by: Mark Jones, report author. 
 
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
None 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 – Residents’ services revenue forecast 
Appendix 2 – Parking revenue forecast 
Appendix 3 – Detailed income and expenditure for individual service areas   
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Residents’ services Revenue Forecast 
 

  

Departmental Division

Actual 

Outturn 

17/18

Variance 

17/18

Budget 

18/19

Forecast 

Actual 18/19

Variance 

18/19

Budget 

18/19

Forecast 

Actual 18/19

Variance 

18/19

Revised 

Budget

Variance 

Month 2

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cleaner, Greener & Cultural Services 9,052 (94) (4,762) (4,596) 165 13,713 13,342 (354) 8,951 (206)

Transport and Highways 14,972 320 (5,482) (6,006) (524) 18,274 19,218 944 12,792 420

Leisure & Parks 4,556 (51) (3,555) (3,576) (21) 7,950 8,003 53 4,395 32

Environmental Health, Community Safety & Emergency Planning 7,967 (151) (6,729) (6,472) 257 13,222 13,231 134 6,493 266

Other LBHF Commercial Services (117) 106 (290) (50) 240 52 52 0 (238) 240

Executive, Finance and Contingency 1,225 (97) (306) (312) (5) 1,821 1,826 22 1,514 (0)

Commercial Services, including waste contract (FCS) 11,680 (32) (482) (481) 1 12,321 12,320 11 11,838 0

Customer Services 15,846 (26) (4,325) (4,417) (92) 18,898 18,990 92 14,573 0

Libraries Shared Services 2,862 18 (584) (584) 0 3,212 3,212 0 2,628 0

TOTAL 68,043 (6) (26,515) (26,494) 21 89,462 90,193 902 62,946 753

Control Totals as @ Month 2 48,587

Expenditure Total

Table 1 - Variance by Departmental Division

Income

P
age 47



 

 

Variance Analysis and Risks 
 

 
 
 

Month 2

£000

(306)

100

(206)

73

55

54

45

20

202

41

(40)

(19)

(11)

420

Land Survey underspend due to IT costs being chargeable to TFL.

Streetlighting Energy: Ongoing reduction in energy use from the LED replacement project. 

Other underspends

Network Management FPN income. Rule changes following developments in case law mean that the 

FPN target cannot be achieved in full.

Network Management license income

Baymedia advertising contract. Quarterly figures for 17/18 suggest that the budget for this is too high 

unless the amounts will increase with time.

Salaries and recharges to projects: The combined forecasts for salaries and charges to projects show 

an overspend due to some costs that may not be fully rechargeable to projects.  If new projects are 

identified in the year then this pressure will be removed.

Recurring IT costs are under budgeted as there has been a reliance on the IT reserve in prior years 

which has now been transferred to corporate reserves

Greener Living: -£281k underspend on waste disposal due to continuation of the reduced recyclate 

processing rate and reduced waste tonnage. -£25k other smaller net underspends

Culture: Commercial income saving for Parks and Markets Events not expected to be delivered (rolled 

forward from 2017). This has been escalated in order to identify a permanent resolution to this budget 

pressure going forward

Transport Planning Consultancy. There is some possibility of income but the likely amounts are small. 

Total of Cleaner, Greener & Cultural Services

Metro Wireless WIFI income. This has not achieving the amounts originally estimated

Transport & Highways

Total of Transport & Highways

Departmental Division

Cleaner, Greener & Cultural Services

Table 2 - Variance Analysis 

P
age 48



 

 

 

Leisure and Parks   

Salaries net overspend 7 

Additional water charges due to installation of meters 33 

Higher forecast for Linford Christie energy costs 10 

Additional cemeteries income (13) 

Additional parks income (7) 

Other 2 

Total of Leisure and Parks 32 

    

Environmental Health, Community Safety & Emergency Planning   

Licensing & Trading Standards: £70k forecast Licensing income shortfall, 
mostly due to £40k reduction in Olympia license fee (from £93k in 2016/17 to 
£53k in 2018/19), but other licensing income is also forecast to be +£29k less 
than budget. Recovery plan being developed to address this ongoing 
pressure. 

69 

Community Safety: +£120k income shortfall due to non-delivery of 
commercial income savings rolled forward from 2017/18 (£100k deployable 
CCTV and £20k Professional Witness). This has been escalated in order to 
identify a permanent resolution to this budget pressure going forwards. 

120 

Emergency Planning: Due to ongoing budget pressures in transport (£30k 
forecast shortfall in leasing income due to long term unachieved income 
target and £47k forecast income shortfall in fleet management). Possibility of 
securing admin fees for fleet management from WCC (£18k) and RBKC (£5k) 
but not yet agreed. Further £24k income risk if parking spaces and empty 
workshop space cannot be rented out.  

77 

P
age 49



 

 

Note: The 2017/18 underspend in Registrar's is not expected to be repeated 
in 2018/19 due to the loss of Nationality Checking income from October 2018 
(as this scheme has been scrapped by the Government) and the impact of the 
planned HTH refurbishment on income levels for other ceremonies. 
 
RISK: there is a risk that a further £40k may be required to fund the Coroner's 
service both this year and next to clear a backlog of cases. 

  

Total of Environmental Health, Community Safety & Emergency 
Planning 

266 

    

Other LBHF Commercial Services   

Forecast shortfall on CCTV ducting contract (£50k income v £290k income 
budget). New contact being negotiated, so actual amounts not yet known but 
likely to be in the region of £50k. Shortfall can be funded from one off 
departmental reserves this year if required, but a permanent resolution to the 
budget gap is required from 2019/20. Likely growth bid from 2019/20 

240 

Total of Other LBHF Commercial Services 240 

 

P
age 50



 

 

 
 

0

0

0

0

75

(92)

17

0

TOTAL VARIANCE 752

Risk At

Month 2

£000

60

150

159

150

172

40

731

That £40k may be required to fund the Coroner's service both this year and next to clear a backlog of 

cases.

Customer Services

Pressure on Costs of Collection and Court Costs assuming 2017/18 figures continue into 2018/19

Table 3 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000

Loss of nationality checking income in registrars service

If Serco saving assumed by Ernst & Young may not be achieved.

Registrars forward wedding bookings affected by HTH redevelopment.

Risk Description

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED

Risk that savings cannot be made to fund the 2% pay award in 18/19.

Total of Customer Services

If Customer Channel Improvement Savings not delivered

Underspends relating to Local Support Payments assuming 2017/18 figures continue into 2018/19.

Other 

Total of Commercial Services (FCS)

No variance forecast

Commercial Services (FCS)

Executive, Finance and Contingency

Need to understand whether the 2017/18 underspend on TTS Directorate for IT is likely to be repeated 

in 2018/19             (-£51k)

Total of Executive, Finance and Contingency

P
age 51



 

 

 
Appendix 2 

Parking Revenue Forecast 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Departmental Division

Actual Outturn 

2017/18  

Budget 18/19 Forecast 

Actual 18/19

Variance 18/19 Budget 

18/19

Forecast 

Actual 18/19

Variance 

18/19
Revised 

Budget
Variance Month 2

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Controlled Parking Account Expenditure 13,223 0 0 0 13,213 13,294 81 13,213 81

Pay and Display Income (14,238) (13,552) (14,583) (1,030) 0 0 0 (13,552) (1,030)

Residents/Business Permit Income (4,583) (4,496) (4,598) (102) 0 0 0 (4,496) (102)

Parking Suspensions Income (2,325) (3,260) (2,516) 744 0 0 0 (3,260) 744

Penalty Charge Notices Income (14,928) (14,594) (14,665) (71) 0 0 0 (14,594) (71)

Removal and Storage Income (269) (251) (263) (12) 0 0 0 (251) (12)

Other Receipts (34) 0 (23) (23) 0 0 0 0 (23)

TOTAL (23,154) (36,153) (36,648) (495) 13,213 13,294 81 (22,940) (413)

Control Totals as @ Month 2 (22,940)

TotalIncome Expenditure

BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT – 2018/19 MONTH 2

Table 1 - Variance by Departmental Division

P
age 52



 

 

 
Variance Analysis and Risks 
 

 
 
 

Month 2

£000

(1,030)

(102)

(71)

(12)

744

(23)

(370)

452

(413)

TOTAL VARIANCE (413)

Risk At

Month 2

£000

400

113

513TOTAL RISKS MANAGED

Pay and display income overachievement

Total of Parking

Suspensions Income underachievement

Towaways Income overachievement

Parking PCN Incom overachievement

Permits income overachievement

Salary overspend to maintain income levels

Offset by an underspend of (£370k) on supplies and services primarily due to reductions in cost 

as result of the completion of the rollout of cashless parking, leading to reductions in cash 

collection and maintenance costs.

Other receipts

Table 3 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000

The number of Parking Suspension requests are dictated by outside factors such as property 

development levels, house moves, utility works etc we will continue to monitor.

If savings cannot be found to meet the 2% cost of the 18/19 pay award

Risk Description

Departmental Division

Parking Control

Table 2 - Variance Analysis 

P
age 53



 

 

Appendix 3 
Detailed income and expenditure for individual service areas   
 
 
Cleaner Greener and Cultural Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Cleaner, Greener & Cultural Services

Cleaner Greener & Cultural Services

Director for Cleaner, Greener and Cultural Services (134) (92) (93) (2) 164 152 152 -                   59 (2)

Cleaner Greener & Cultural Services Total (134) (92) (93) (2) 164 152 152 -                   59 (2)

Culture

Community Libraries (27) -                   -                   -                   74 34 34 -                   34 -                        

Events & Lettings (1,005) (970) (870) 99 942 835 836 1 (35) 100

Filming (63) (210) (210) -                   3 1 1 -                   (209) -                        

Fulham Palace -                   -                   -                   -                   173 146 146 -                   146 -                        

Head of Culture (47) (71) (72) (1) 97 103 103 -                   30 (1)

Culture Total (1,142) (1,250) (1,153) 98 1,290 1,119 1,119 1 (33) 99

Greener Living

Commercial Waste (3,219) (3,355) (3,284) 71 3,152 3,108 3,013 (95) (271) (24)

Head of Waste & Street Enforcement (2) (12) (12) -                   92 113 114 1 102 1

Waste Disposal -                   -                   -                   -                   8,595 8,863 8,582 (281) 8,582 (281)

Waste Policy and Development (44) (53) (54) (1) 300 359 361 2 306 1

Greener Living Total (3,265) (3,420) (3,350) 70 12,138 12,442 12,070 (373) 8,719 (303)

Cleaner, Greener & Cultural Services Total (4,541) (4,762) (4,596) 165 13,592 13,713 13,341 (372) 8,745 (206)

Grand Total (4,541) (4,762) (4,596) 165 13,592 13,713 13,341 (372) 8,745 (206)

P
age 54



 

 

Transport & Highways 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Transport and Highways

Transport and Highways

Highways & Projects Administration (19) (30) (30) -                   196 213 214 1 184 1

Transport and Highways Total (19) (30) (30) -                   196 213 214 1 184 1

Highways Maintenance and Projects

Aboriculture (36) (8) (108) (100) 425 396 460 64 352 (36)

Highways Maintenance Group (487) (376) (497) (122) 11,524 10,470 10,471 2 9,974 (120)

Highways Projects & Development (1,151) (1,036) (1,090) (55) 1,124 883 1,141 258 51 203

Lighting & Signs (175) (501) (379) 122 805 777 756 (21) 377 101

Structures (226) (575) (481) 95 2,077 2,431 2,333 (98) 1,853 (3)

Survey Projects (1,256) (316) (574) (257) 1,257 377 540 163 (33) (94)

Highways Maintenance and Projects Total (3,330) (2,812) (3,129) (317) 17,212 15,335 15,702 367 12,573 50

Transport Policy and Network Management

Highways Projects & Development (176) (209) (196) 13 578 331 568 236 372 250

Network Assurance Group (1,454) (1,503) (1,410) 93 1,046 939 977 38 (433) 131

Network Compliance Group (81) (62) (62) -                   229 203 208 5 146 5

Parking Projects Group (575) (552) (583) (31) 706 362 429 67 (154) 36

Transportation & Development Group (672) (315) (597) (282) 1,311 891 1,121 229 524 (53)

Transport Policy and Network Management Total (2,957) (2,640) (2,847) (207) 3,870 2,726 3,302 576 455 369

Transport and Highways Total (6,306) (5,482) (6,006) (524) 21,278 18,274 19,218 944 13,212 420

Grand Total (6,306) (5,482) (6,006) (524) 21,278 18,274 19,218 944 13,212 420

P
age 55



 

 

Leisure and Parks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INC/EXP Values

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Leisure & Parks

Leisure & Parks

Head of Leisure and Parks -                   -                   -                   -                   73 46 61 15 61 15

Cemeteries (875) (863) (876) (13) 806 866 869 3 (7) (10)

Parks and Open Spaces (1,657) (1,623) (1,629) (7) 5,725 5,339 5,388 49 3,758 42

Parks Projects (87) (236) (236) -                   140 315 322 7 86 7

Sports Centres (266) (247) (247) -                   979 948 963 15 716 15

Sports Operations & Bookings (780) (586) (587) (1) 500 436 400 (35) (187) (36)

Leisure & Parks Total (3,666) (3,555) (3,575) (21) 8,221 7,950 8,003 53 4,428 32

Leisure & Parks Total (3,666) (3,555) (3,575) (21) 8,221 7,950 8,003 53 4,428 32

Grand Total (3,666) (3,555) (3,575) (21) 8,221 7,950 8,003 53 4,428 32

P
age 56



 

 

Environmental Health, Community Safety and Emergency Planning 

 

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Environmental Health, Community Safety & Emergency Planning

Community Safety

Head of Community Safety (19) (24) (24) -                   126 117 117 -                   93 -                        

ASBU (1) -                   -                   -                   116 116 116 -                   116 -                        

CCTV (336) (464) (364) 100 869 993 993 -                   629 100

Community Safety (1,727) (595) (595) -                   2,945 1,244 1,244 -                   649 -                        

Dog Control -                   -                   -                   -                   22 33 33 -                   33 -                        

Neighbourhood Wardens -                   (25) (5) 20 144 144 144 -                   139 20

Parks Police (340) (345) (345) -                   1,208 1,417 1,417 -                   1,072 -                        

Community Safety Total (2,423) (1,453) (1,333) 120 5,430 4,063 4,063 -                   2,730 120

Emergency Planning and Transport

Emergency Planning (51) (4) (4) -                   435 300 300 -                   296 -                        

Mortuary and Coroners Service (1,577) (1,305) (1,305) -                   1,865 1,673 1,673 -                   368 -                        

Registrars (658) (540) (540) -                   668 919 919 0 379 0

Transport (991) (926) (849) 77 1,091 932 932 -                   83 77

Emergency Planning and Transport Total (3,277) (2,775) (2,698) 77 4,059 3,825 3,825 0 1,127 77

Environmental Health

EH Management (198) -                   -                   -                   480 235 235 -                   235 -                        

Environmental Health Total (198) -                   -                   -                   480 235 235 -                   235 -                        

Environmental Health - Commercial

Food Safety Training (293) (124) (124) -                   888 827 827 -                   702 -                        

Health and Safety -                   -                   -                   -                   0 -                   -                   -                   -                        -                        

Pest Control (236) (238) (238) -                   283 304 304 -                   66 -                        

Environmental Health - Commercial Total (529) (362) (362) -                   1,171 1,130 1,130 -                   768 -                        

Environmental Health - Residential

Corporate Safety (423) (247) (247) -                   524 349 349 -                   102 -                        

Environmental Quality (475) (230) (230) -                   697 382 382 -                   152 -                        

Noise and Nuisance (350) (67) (67) -                   1,202 829 829 -                   762 -                        

Private Housing & Health (1,006) (1,016) (1,016) -                   1,859 1,519 1,519 -                   503 -                        

Environmental Health - Residential Total (2,254) (1,560) (1,560) -                   4,282 3,080 3,080 -                   1,520 -                        

Licensing & Street Trading

Licensing (393) (448) (379) 69 651 470 470 -                   91 69

Trading Standards (341) (103) (103) -                   551 358 358 -                   255 -                        

Licensing & Street Trading Total (735) (551) (482) 69 1,202 827 827 -                   346 69

Safer Neighbourhoods

Director for Safer Neighbourhoods (19) (28) (28) -                   99 63 63 -                   35 -                        

Safer Neighbourhoods Total (19) (28) (28) -                   99 63 63 -                   35 -                        

Environmental Health, Community Safety & Emergency Planning Total(9,435) (6,729) (6,462) 267 16,723 13,222 13,222 0 6,760 267

Grand Total (9,435) (6,729) (6,462) 267 16,723 13,222 13,222 0 6,760 267

P
age 57



 

 

 
Other Commercial Services 

 
 
 
Waste Contract and enforcement (previously Commercial Services) 

 
 
 
 

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Other LBHF Commercial Services

Other LBHF Commercial Services

Business Improvement -                   -                   -                   -                   38 52 52 -                   52 -                        

CCTV Ducting Contract (155) (290) (50) 240 -                   -                   -                   -                   (50) 240

Other LBHF Commercial Services Total (155) (290) (50) 240 38 52 52 -                   2 240

Other LBHF Commercial Services Total (155) (290) (50) 240 38 52 52 -                   2 240

Grand Total (155) (290) (50) 240 38 52 52 -                   2 240

Income Expenditure

Total 

Forecast 

2018/19

Total 

Forecast 

Variance 

Director (T)Head of ServiceService Area

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

2017/18 

Actuals 

2018/19 

Budget

Forecast 

2018/19

Forecast 

Variance 

Commercial Services

Commercial Management

Clinical Waste -                   -                   -                   -                   47 44 44 -                   44 -                        

Public Conveniences -                   -                   -                   -                   22 25 25 -                   25 -                        

Waste Contract Management - LBHF (740) (461) (461) -                   11,605 11,431 11,431 -                   10,969 -                        

Commercial Management Total (740) (461) (461) -                   11,674 11,499 11,499 -                   11,038 -                        

Street Czar

Graffiti -                   -                   -                   -                   167 219 219 -                   219 -                        

Street Czar Projects (50) -                   -                   -                   237 -                   -                   -                   -                        -                        

Street Scene Enforcement (32) (21) (21) -                   425 602 602 -                   581 -                        

Street Czar Total (83) (21) (21) -                   828 821 821 -                   800 -                        

Commercial Services Total (823) (482) (482) -                   12,503 12,321 12,321 -                   11,838 -                        

Grand Total (823) (482) (482) -                   12,503 12,321 12,321 -                   11,838 -                        

P
age 58



1 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

FINANCE, COMMERCIAL REVENUE AND CONTRACTS 
POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
4 JULY 2018 

 

 

Section 106 Update 
 

Report of Cabinet Member for the Economy and Arts: Councillor Andrew Jones 

 
Report Status: Open 
 

Classification:  For review and comment. 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director:  
Jo Rowlands: Growth and Place Strategic Director 
 

Report Authors:  
Matt Butler: Head of Policy and Spatial Planning 
Ellen Whitchurch: Head of Development 
Management 

Contact Details: 
Email: john.finlayson@lbhf.gov.uk 
Telephone 020 8753 6743 
 

 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 This report covers the role of section 106 agreements and use of 

section 106 funds. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) notes and 
comments on the report. 

 
3. Background to planning obligations   

 
3.1 Planning obligations under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended), commonly known as s.106 agreements, are a 
mechanism which make a development proposal acceptable in planning 
terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site 
specific mitigation of the impact of development.  

3.2 S.106 agreements are often referred to as 'developer contributions' 
along with highway contributions and the Community Infrastructure 
Levy. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

mailto:john.finlayson@lbhf.gov.uk


2 
 

3.3 The use of planning obligations must be governed by the fundamental 
principle that planning permission may not be bought or sold. It is not 
acceptable for development to be permitted because of benefits or 
inducements offered by a developer.  

3.4 Similarly, planning obligations should never be used as a means of 
securing for the local community a share in the profits of development, 
i.e. as a means of securing a "betterment levy”. 

3.5 Planning obligations are used to secure affordable housing, and to 
specify the type and timing of this housing; and to secure financial 
contributions to provide infrastructure or affordable housing. These are 
not the only uses for a s.106 obligation. A s.106 obligation can: 

 
 restrict the development or use of the land in any specified way 
 require specified operations or activities to be carried out in, on, 

under or over the land 
 require the land to be used in any specified way 
 require a sum or sums to be paid to the authority on a specified date 

or dates or periodically. 
 
3.6 The legal tests for when you can use a s.106 agreement are set out in 

regulation 122 and 123 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 as amended. The tests are: 

Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms: 
i.e. to bring a development in line with the objectives of sustainable 
development as articulated through the relevant local, regional or 
national planning policies. Development plan policies are a crucial pre-
determinant in justifying the seeking of any planning obligations since 
they set out the matters essential for development to proceed. 
 
Directly related to the development: obligations must so directly 
relate to proposed development, that the development ought not to be 
permitted without them. For example, there should be a functional or 
geographical link between the development and the item being provided 
as part of the developer's contribution. This does not limit the use of the 
obligation to the ward where the development takes place. 

 
Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development: 

 what is sought must be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the proposed development and reasonable in all other respects. For 
example, developers may be expected to pay for or contribute to the 
cost of all, or that part of, additional infrastructure provision which would 
not have been necessary but for their development. This investment 
may confer some wider benefit on the community but payments should 
be directly related in scale to the impact of the proposed development. 
Planning obligations should not be used solely to resolve existing 
deficiencies in infrastructure provision or to secure contributions to the 

Page 60



3 
 

achievement of wider planning objectives that are not necessary to 
allow planning permission to be given for a particular development. 

 
4. Use of planning obligations 
 
4.1 Planning obligations should not be sought where they are clearly not 

necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The 
following paragraphs give a general indication of what might reasonably 
be achieved using planning obligations. Establishing the relationship 
between a particular planning benefit and an individual development is a 
matter of planning judgement, exercised in the light of local 
circumstances, rather than detailed national prescription. 

 
4.2  Prescribing the nature of the development to achieve planning 

objectives: 
 

Planning obligations can be used to secure the implementation of a 
planning policy to make acceptable a development proposal that would 
otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms. For example, where not 
possible through a planning condition, planning obligations can be used 
to secure the inclusion of an element of affordable housing in a 
residential or mixed-use development where there is a residential 
component. 

 
The general presumption is that the affordable housing provided through 
planning obligations should be provided in-kind and on-site. However, 
there may be certain circumstances where provision on another site or a 
financial contribution may represent a more appropriate option 

 
Where a proposed development would, if implemented, create a need 
for a particular facility that is relevant to planning but cannot be required 
through the use of planning conditions, it will usually be reasonable for 
planning obligations to be secured to meet this need. For example, 
where a proposed development is not acceptable in planning terms due 
to inadequate access or public transport provision, planning obligations 
might be used to secure contributions towards a new access road or 
provision of a bus service, perhaps co-ordinated through a Travel Plan.  
 
Similarly, if a proposed development would give rise to the need for 
additional or expanded community infrastructure, for example, a new 
school classroom, which is necessary in planning terms and not 
provided for in an application, it might be acceptable for contributions to 
be sought towards this additional provision through a planning 
obligation. 

 
4.3 Compensating for loss or damage caused by a development: 

Planning obligations might be used, when appropriate, to offset through 
substitution, replacement or regeneration the loss of, or damage to, a 
feature or resource present or nearby. For example, a landscape 
feature of biodiversity value, open space or right of way. It may not be 
necessary to provide an exact substitute of the item lost, but there 

Page 61



4 
 

should be some relationship between what is lost and what is to be 
offered. A reasonable obligation will seek to restore facilities, resources 
and amenities to a quality equivalent to that existing before the 
development. 

 
5 Payments 
 
5.1 Payments can be made in the form of a lump sum or an endowment, or, 

if beneficial to all parties and not unduly complex, as phased payments 
over a period of time, related to defined dates, events and triggers 

 
5.2 Where contributions are secured through planning obligations towards 

the provision of facilities which are predominantly for the benefit of the 
users of the associated development, it may be appropriate for the 
developer to make provision for maintenance and physical upkeep. 
Such provision may be required in perpetuity. 

 
5.3 However, as a general rule where an asset is intended for wider public 

use, the costs of subsequent maintenance and other recurrent 
expenditure associated with the developer's contributions should 
normally be borne by the body or authority in which the asset is to be 
vested.  

 
5.4 Where contributions to the initial support (“pump priming”) of new 

facilities are necessary, these should reflect the time lag between the 
provision of the new facility and its inclusion in public sector funding 
streams, or its ability to recover its own costs in the case of privately-run 
bus services, for example. Pump priming maintenance payments should 
be time-limited and not be required in perpetuity by planning obligations. 

 
5.5 For all maintenance payments, local authorities and developers should 

agree the type of payments to be made, for example regular payments, 
or commuted sums, all with a clear audit trail. 

 
5.6 ‘Pooled Contributions’ intended to provide common types of 

infrastructure for the wider area can be sought. Where the combined 
impact of a number of developments creates the need for infrastructure, 
it may be reasonable for the associated developers' contributions to be 
pooled, to allow the infrastructure to be secured in a fair and equitable 
way.  

 
5.7 In some cases, individual developments will have some impact but not 

sufficient to justify the need for a discrete piece of infrastructure. In 
these instances, local planning authorities may wish to consider whether 
it is appropriate to seek contributions to specific future provision. In 
these cases, spare capacity in existing infrastructure provision should 
not be credited to earlier developers. 

 
5.8 In cases where an item of infrastructure necessitated by the cumulative 

impact of a series of developments is provided by a local authority or 
other body before all the developments have come forward, the later 

Page 62



5 
 

developers may still be required to contribute the relevant proportion of 
the costs. This practice can still meet the requirements of the policy 
tests if the need for the infrastructure and the proportionate 
contributions to be sought is set out in advance. In the White City 
Opportunity Area to provide as much certainty as possible concerning 
the infrastructure needed to support development the Council prepared 
a Development Infrastructure Funding Study (DIF). The DIF identified 
the estimated costs of the infrastructure and the extent to which 
developers were expected to contribute. 

 
6. Enforcement 
 
6.1 The obligation becomes a land charge. If the s.106 is not complied with, 

it is enforceable against the person that entered into the obligation and 
any subsequent owner. The s.106 can be enforced by injunction. In 
case of a of a breach of the obligation the authority can take direct 
action and recover expenses.  

 
7. Viability  
 
7.1 Over the last few years there has been growing concern about delivery 

of development and development viability. This is reflected in the 
National Planning Policy Framework: “Where obligations are being 
sought or revised, local planning authorities should take account of 
changes in market conditions over time and, wherever appropriate, be 
sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being stalled." 

8. Changing planning obligations 
 
8.1 Planning obligations can be renegotiated at any point, where the local 

planning authority and developer wish to do so. Where there is no 
agreement to voluntarily renegotiate, and the planning obligation is over 
5 years old, an application may be made to the local planning authority 
to change the obligation where it “no longer serves a useful purpose” or 
would continue “to serve a useful purpose in a modified way”.  

 
9. How S106 funds are monitored and tracked 
 
9.1 The Council employs an Obligations Monitoring Officer to log and 

monitor all planning obligations. This post is paid for by contributions 
made by developers when they enter into planning obligations. 

 
9.2 All legal agreements and obligations contained in them are entered onto 

a Council Database. For all obligations triggers are set within the 
database for compliance checks. 

 
9.3 All contributions held are logged in the Councils corporate finance 

system and a monthly financial reconciliation ensures consistency 
across the two data sets. 

 
10. S.106 Spend in LBHF 

Page 63



6 
 

 
10.1 Local planning authorities are expected to use all of the funding they 

receive through planning obligations in accordance with the terms of the 
individual planning obligation agreement. This will ensure that new 
developments are acceptable in planning terms; benefit local 
communities and support the provision of local infrastructure. There is 
currently £50m of s. 106 funds in hand.  

 
10.2 In LBHF there are three broad categories of s.106 spend, for a: 
 

 specific purpose defined and described in the s.106 agreement for 
example junction improvements 

 general functional purpose defined and described in the s.106 
agreement but with geographical constraints, for example 
infrastructure improvements in the White City Regeneration Area 

 general purpose defined and described in the s.106 agreement but 
with no borough geographical constraints, for example improving 
opportunities for young people in the borough (Stamford Bridge 
s.106). 

  
11. How decisions are taken 
 
11.1 The Council has an agreed process for deciding the spend of s.106 
 contributions. In summary:  
 

 If the contribution is for a specific purpose, e.g. an identified junction 
improvement, the relevant department proposes a project which is 
submitted to an officer level board. This board meets every 6 weeks. 
The report is then submitted to the quarterly member working group for 
agreement. 
 
 If the contribution is for a more generic purpose, individual departments 
propose mitigation projects which are then prioritised at the board of 
Council officers before being considered and agreed by the Member 
S106/CIL working group having regard to Corporate priorities. 

 
 Councillors can make representations to the relevant department and 
 discuss the need for a particular project to be put forward for funding. 
 
11.2 The current arrangements as to how s.106 contributions are authorised 
 for spend in Hammersmith and Fulham are being reviewed. 
 
12. Community Infrastructure Levy  
 
12.1 The Government viewed s.106 as providing only partial and variable 

response to capturing funding contributions for infrastructure. As such, 
provision for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is now in place in 
the Planning Act (2008). 

12.2 In terms of developer contributions, CIL has not replaced s.106 
agreements, the introduction of CIL resulted in a tightening up of the 

Page 64



7 
 

s.106 tests. S.106 agreements, in terms of developer contributions, 
should be focused on addressing the specific mitigation required by a 
new development. CIL has been developed to address the broader 
impacts of development. There should be no circumstances where a 
developer is paying CIL and s.106 for the same infrastructure in relation 
to the same development. 

12.3 Developers may be asked to provide contributions for infrastructure in 
several ways. This may be by way of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
and planning obligations in the form of s.106 agreements and s.278 
highway agreements. Developers will also have to comply with any 
conditions attached to their planning permission. Local authorities 
should ensure that the combined total impact of such requests does not 
threaten the viability of the sites and scale of development identified in 
the development plan. 

 
12.4 The emphasis is now on CIL as the levy is intended to provide 

infrastructure to support the development of an area, rather than making 
individual planning applications acceptable in planning terms. When a 
charging authority introduces the levy, s.106 requirements should be 
scaled back to those matters that are directly related to a specific site, 
and are not set out in a regulation 123 list. Where the regulation 123 list 
includes a generic type of infrastructure (such as ‘education’ or 
‘transport’), s.106 contributions should not be sought on any specific 
projects in that category. Where a regulation 123 list includes project-
specific infrastructure, the charging authority should not seek any 
planning obligations in relation to that infrastructure. 

 
12.5 Some site specific impact mitigation may be necessary for a 

development to be granted planning permission. Some of these needs 
may be provided for through the levy but others may not, particularly if 
they are very local in their impact. There is still a legitimate role for 
development specific planning obligations to enable a local planning 
authority to be confident the specific consequences of a particular 
development can be mitigated. 

 
12.6 Where the levy is in place for an area, charging authorities should work 

with developers to ensure they are clear about the infrastructure needs 
and what developers will be expected to pay. There should not be 
actual or perceived ‘double dipping’ with developers paying twice for the 
same item of infrastructure. 

 
 

 

Page 65


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 2017/18 CORPORATE REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT
	7 RESIDENTS' SERVICES REPORT - REVENUE REPORT 2018/19
	8 Section 106 Update Report

